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BASF Catalysts LLC ("Respondent") submits this Prehearing Exchange in accordance 
with the Prehearing Order dated February 2, 2009 and Section 22.19(a) of the Consolidated 
Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the 
RevocatiodTermination or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22. 

1. A list of all witnesses Respondent intends to call with a brief narrative summary of their 
expected testimony. 

Respondent anticipates calling the following witness: 

Michelle Nooney 
Senior Environmental, Health and Safety Specialist 
BASF Catalysts LLC 
1800 E. President Street 
Savannah, GA 3 1404 

Ms. Nooney is expected to testify regarding her knowledge and understanding of the 
requirements of EPCRA 313 reporting. She will also testify as to the activities she 
undertook to prepare the EPCRA 313 report, and the timing thereof, for the Savannah 
facility for reporting year 2006. As the person who met with the inspector on April 10, 
2007, Ms. Nooney will also testify as to the information discussed and document 
provided to Erika White (now Erika Bolden) during the inspection. Ms. Nooney's 
testimony will include the process whereby BASF disclosed pursuant to EPA's "Audit 
Policy" its omission of nitric acid in the facility's EPCRA reports for 2003, 2004 and 
2005. Ms. Nooney is also expected to testify as to some of the statements made in the 
inspector's field notes and report. 

Respondent reserves the right to expand or otherwise modify the scope of Ms. Nooney's 
testimony as permitted. Respondent also reserves the right to call additional witnesses as 
may be necessary to respond to issues raised by, or documents andlor exhibits included 



Respondent's Prehearing Exchange 

in, Complainant's prehearing exchange. Respondent further reserves the right to call 
additional witnesses upon adequate notice to Complainant and to the Court. 

2. Copies of all documents and exhibits Respondent intends to introduce into evidence. 

Respondent's Exhibit 1: BASF Catalysts Tier 11 Emergency and Hazardous Chemical 
Inventory dated February 23,2007 
Respondent's Exhibit 2: EPA receipt for samples and documents dated April 10,2007 
Respondent's Exhibit 3: BASF Catalysts Title V Permit Facility Description dated 
October 3, 2006 (page 1 of 42 only) 
Respondent's Exhibit 4: BASF Catalysts EPCRA Disclosure Pursuant to EPA's Audit 
Policy dated June 5,2007 
Respondent's Exhibit 5: EPA's response to BASF Catalysts EPCRA Disclosure dated 
June 20,1007 
Respondent's Exhibit 6: BASF Catalysts EPCRA Disclosure Pursuant to EPA's Audit 
Policy dated July 13,2007 
Respondent's Exhibit 7: BASF Catalysts Toxic Chemical Release lnventory Form A, 
Nitric Acid, dated July 13,2007 
Respondent's Exhibit 8: EPA's response to BASF Catalysts EPCRA Disclosure dated 
October 29, 2007 
Respondent's Exhibit 9: BASF Catalysts request for reconsideration of EPA's 
determination dated December 4,2007 
Respondent's Exhibit 10: EPA's Notice of Violation dated February 1,2008 
Respondent's Exhibit 11: BASF Catalysts response to the Notice of Violation dated May 
8,2008 

3. Respondent does not take the position that it is unable to pay the proposed penalty, or that 
payment will have an adverse effect on Respondent's ability to continue in business. 

4. Respondent admits liability but challenges the appropriateness of the penalty sought by 
EPA based on Respondent's having disclosed its reporting omission pursuant to EPA's 
Audit Policy. 



Respondent's Prehearing Exchange 

6. Respondent requests that the prehearing conference be held by telephone. Respondent 
further requests that the hearing be held in Chatham County, which is where Respondent 
conducts the business which is the subject of the hearing. Alternatively, Respondent 
requests that the hearing be held in Atlanta. 

Respondent anticipates that it will need a half day to present its case. 

At present, Respondent's witness or counsel are unavailable on April 24, May 1-4, June 
29-30, and July 1-lo1 2009. 

Dated: April 1,2009 Respecthlly submitted, 

By: 
Nancy Lake Martin 
Senior Counsel 
BASF Catalysts LLC 
100 Campus Drive 
Florham Park, NJ 07932 
(973) 245-6055 
(973) 245-6706 (facsimile) 



Respondent's Prehearing Exchange 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that, on the date indicated below, I sent by Federal Express overnight mail, the 
original and one copy of Respondent's Prehearing Exchange, with attachments, in In the Matter 
of BASF Catalvsts LLC, Docket No. EPCRA-4-2009-2001, to the Regional Hearing Clerk at the 
following addressee: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

I also certify that, on the date indicated below, I sent by Federal Express overnight mail, a 
copy of Respondent's Prehearing Exchange, with attachments, to the following addressees: 

Judge William B. Moran 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Office of Administrative Law Judges 
Franklin Court Building 
1099 1 4 ' ~  Street N.W., Suite 350 
Washington, DC 20460 

Mr. Adam Dilts 
Assistant Regional Counsel 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

1, goo? ~lw 
Date' Nancy ~ a k k  Martin 

Senior Counsel 
BASF Catalysts LLC 
100 Campus Drive 
Florham Park, NJ 07932 
(973) 245-6055 
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Tler Two 

Emergency and Hazardous Chemlcal Inventory 

Specific InformaUon by Chemlcal 

Reporting Period: January 1 to December 31.2008 

Page 1 

Pn'nted: February 23,2007 

Faclllty Name: BASF Catalysts LLC 

--n--*..n_......m- ......... *..--a n.nn---..*..- .... *...-.**..*m*-.*am*-a*. 

-* n~**.***.~.n~..~~.~...*.*.m~..**.*.*~~.~..~.*.nn.....~m~w..w..~*..m~- 

FACILITY IDENTIFICATION: 
BASF Catalysts L C  
Dept: 
1800 East President Street 
Savannah. GA 31404. USA 
Counly: Chatham 
Number otemployees: 100 
Latitude: 32.0418 
Longitude: 81.0333 
Method: I3 - Interpolation (Salellite) 
Description: CE - Center of Facillly 
MAILING ADDRESS: 1800 East President Street 
Savannah, GA 31404 USA 

IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS: 
Dun 8 Bredstreat 099280629 
SIC: 3295 (MINE 8 EARTHS. GROUND OR TREAT) 

CONTACT INFORMATION: 

Control Room Operator. 
Conlad Type 1: Emergency Contact 
Address: 1800 East President Street. Savannah, GA. 31404 USA 
Phones: 24-hour: 912-844-8182 

Nooney, Michelle 
Title: EHBS Contact Type 1: Regulatory Polnt of Contact 
Address: 1800 East President Sreel, Savannah, GA, 31404 USA 
Phones: Wo*: 912-651-1256 Mobile - Cell: 912-704-3563 
Email: mIcheile.nooney@basf.mm 

Christopher, Jimmy 
Tltle: Site Manager Contact Type 1: Owner1 Operator 
Address: 1600 East President Street, Savannah, GA, 31404 USA 
Phones: Work: 912-651-1224 Mobile - Cell: 912-704-3242 
Emall: jimmy.chn'stopher@bast.com 

CHEMICAL DESCRIPTiONS: 
[ ) All chemicals In lnventory are Identical to last yeafs submlsslon 

-. .-. .- 

CHEM NAME: Aluminum Hydroxide Oxide 
CAS: 24623-77-8 

[ ] Identical to prevlous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
[x] Pure [ 1 Mix [x] Solid [ 1 Liquid [ 1 Gas [ ] EHS 

PHYSICAL 8 HEALTH HAZARDS; 
[ ] Fire [ 1 Sudden Release of Pressure [ 1 Reactivity [XI Immediate (acute) [ ) Delayed (chronic) 



Tler Two Reporting Period: January 1 to December 31,2008 

Emergency and Hazardous Chemioal Inventory Page 2 

Speclflc lnformatlon by Chemkal Psinted: February 23,2007 

Facllity Name: BASF Calalysts LLC 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 188000 pounds Max Dally Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 999.999 pounds) 
Avg Amt: 143000 pounds Avg Dally Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 999.999 pounds) 
Max quantily In largest container: 83000 pounds 
No. of days on-site: 385 

STORAGE CODES 8 STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: H1A - East of FCC Tank Farm Amount: 65000 pounds 
Contalner Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: H1B - East of FCC Tank Farm Amount: 85000 pounds 
Contalner Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: H2 -East of FCC Tank Farm Amount: 50000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some tnformatlon located under olher tabs. 

CHEM NAME: Alumlnum Oxlde 
CAS: 1344-28-1 

[ ] Identical to previous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
[x) Pure [ ]Mix [x] Solid [ ] Liquid [ ]Gas [ ] EHS 

PHYSICAL 8 HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ ] Flre [ ] Sudden Release of Pressure [ ] Reaclivily [x] Immediate (acute) [ ] Delayed (chronic) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 708000 pounds Max Daily Amt code: 05 (100.000 - 999.999 pounds) 
Avg Amt: 342000 pounds Avg Daily Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 999.998 pounds) 
Max quantity In largest container: 178000 pounds 
No. of days on-site: 365 

STORAGE CODES 8 STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Contalner Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: Sllo A -  NE slde of RR tracks Amount: 180000 pounds 
Contalnar Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: Sllo B - NE side of RR tracks Amount: 180000 pounds 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: Silo C - NE side of RR tracks Amount: 180000 pounds 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Localion: Sllo D - NE side of RR tracks Amount: 180000 pounds 

CHEMlCALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some Information located under olher tabs. 

CHEM NAME: Aluminum Odhydrete 
CAS: 1318-23-6 

[ ] Identical to previous year 
[ 1 TRADE SECRET 
[ )Pure [XI Mix [ 1 Solid 1x1 Llquid [ 1 Gas [ ) EHS 

PHYSICAL 8 HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ ]Fire ]Sudden Release of Pressure [ 1 Reactivity 1x1 Immediate (acute) [ ] Delayed (dronic) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 1138000 pounds Max Daily Amt code: 06 (1,000,000- 9.999.999 pounds) 
Avg Amt: 831000 pounds Avg Dally Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 999,999 pounds) 
Max quanlity in largest container: 1138000 pounds 
No. of days on-site: 385 

STORAGE CODES 8 STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: STlA - FCC Tank Farm Amount: 1245000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some Informalion located under other labs. 



Tler Two Repolling Period: January 1 to December 31,2006 

Emergency and Hazardous Chemical Inventory Page 3 

Speclflc Information by Chemical Printed: February 23. 2007 

Faclllty Name: BASF Catalysts LLC 

CHEM NAME: Alumlnum Sulfale 
CAS: 10043-01-3 

[ 1 Identical to previous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
[ ] Pure [x] MIX [ ] Solld [x] Llquld [ ] Gas [ ] EHS 

CHEMICAL COMPONENTS: 
[ ] EHS. CAS: 10043-01-3. Component:Alumlnum sulfate. 26.6% Wt 

PHYSICAL 8 HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ ] Flre [ ]Sudden Release of Pressure [ ] Reaclivlty [x] lmmediale (acute) [ ]Delayed (chronic) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 468000 pounds Max Daily Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 999,989 pounds) 
Avg Amt: 326000 pounds Avg Daily Amt code: 05 (100.000 - 999,999 pounds) 
Max quantity in largest conlalner: 246000 pounds 
No. of days on-slte: 365 

STORAGE CODES & STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST-3255 Amount: 255000 pounds 
Contalner Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST-34 Amount: 333000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some Information located under other tabs. 
- - .- -- --- - - - .-- -- 

CHEM NAME: Aluminum Trioxide 
CAS: 21645-51-2 

[ ] ldenlical to previous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
[x] Pure [ ]Mi  [XI Solid [ ] Llquid [ 1 Gas [ ] EHS 

PHYSICAL 8 HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ 1 Flre [ J Sudden Release of Pressure [ ] Reactivity [XI lmmedlate (acute) [ ] Delayed (chronic) 

INVENTORY: 
Max AM:  83600 pounds Max Dally Amt code: 04 (10,000 - 99.999 pounds) 
Avg Amt: 82700 pounds Avg Daily Amt code: W (10,000 - 99.999 pounds) 
Max quantily in largest contalner: 63600 pounds 
No, of days on-slte: 365 

STORAGE CODES 8 STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: H-1070 Amount: 85000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some Information located under other tabs. 

- .- -. . - .. -. .. .. --. -. -- -. . .- .---- .. - . --. .- .- - 

CHEM NAME: Ammonium Hydroxide 
CAS: 1336-21-6 

[ 1 Identical to previous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
[ ]Pure [XI Mlx [ 1 Solid 1x1 Llquld [ ]Gas [x] EHS 

CHEMICAL COMPONENTS: 
[XI EHS, CAS: 7664-41-7, Component:Ammonia, 19% Wt 

PHYSICAL & HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ ]Fire [ ] Sudden Release of Pressure [ I Reactivity 1x1 Immediate (acute) [ ] Delayed (chronic) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 122000 pounds Max Dally Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 999.999 pounds) 
Avg Amt: 84900 pounds Avg Dally Amt code. 04 (10,000 - 99,999 pounds) 
Max quantity in largest contalner. 122000 pounds 
No. of days on-site: 365 
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Speciflc information by Chemical Printed: February 23,2007 

Faclllty Name: BASF Catalysts LLC 

STORAGE CODES &STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Contalner Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST-6 Amount: 145000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some Information located under olher tabs. 

CHEM NAME: Ammonium Sulfate 
CAS: 7783-20-2 

[ ] Identical lo previous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
[ ] Pure [XI Mi ]Solid [x] Liquid [ ] Gas [ 1 EHS 

CHEMICAL COMPONENTS: 
( ] EHS, CAS: 7783-20-2. Component: Ammonlum sulfate, 38% Wt 

PHYSICAL &HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ ]Fire [ ]Sudden Release of Pressure [ ] Reactivity [XI Immediate (acute) [ 1 Delayed (chronic) 

INVENTORY 
Max Amt: 78500 pounds Max Daily Amt code: 04 (10,000 - 99,999 pounds) 
Avg Amt: 43000 pounds Avo Dally Amt code: 04 (10,000 - 99.999 pounds) 
Max quantity In largest container. 78500 pounds 
No. of days on-slle: 365 

STORAGE CODES 8 STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Conlalner Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST-7 - FCC Plant Amount: 79000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requlres some Information iocaled under olhertabs. -- - 

CHEM NAME: Formic Acid 
CAS: 64-18-6 

[ ] ldenlical to previous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
[ 1 Pure 1x1 Mix [ 1 Solid [XI Llquid [ I Gas f J EHS 

CHEMICAL COMPONENTS: 
[ ] EHS, CAS: 64-18-6, Component: Forrnlc add. 16.5% Wt 

PHYSICAL 8 HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ J Flre [ ] Sudden Release of Pressure [ ] Reactivity [x] Immediate (acute) [ ] Delayed (chronic) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 120000 pounds Max Dally Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 999,999 pounds) 
Avg Aml: 75000 pounds Avg Daily Amt code: 04 (10,000 - 99.999 pounds) 
Max quantity In largest cantalner: 120000 pounds 
No. Of day6 0 ~ ~ 1 t e :  365 

STORAGE CODES 8 STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Locallon: ST-1080 - FCC Tank Farm Amount: 120000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some Informalion located under other tabs. 

CHEM NAME: Kaolin 
CAS: 133258-7 

[ ] Identical to previous year 
[ 1 TRADE SECRET 
[ ] Pure [XI Mix [ 1 Solid [x] Llquid [ ] Gas [ ] EHS 

PHYSICAL & HEALTH HAZARDS: 



Tler Two Reporting Period: January 1 to December31,2006 
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Speclflc informallon by Chemical Prlnted: February 23,2007 

Faclllty Name: BASF Catalysts LLC 

[ ] Fire [ ]Sudden Release of Pressure [ I Reactivity 1x1 Immediate (acute) [ 1 Delayed (chronic) 
INVENTORY: 

Max Amt: 614000 pounds Max Dally Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 999,999 pounds) 
Avg Aml: 458000 pounds Avg Dally Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 998,999 pounds) 
Max quan l l  in largest container: 614000 pounds 
No. of days on-site: 365 

STORAGE CODES 8 STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST-3 - FCC Tank Farm Amount: 651000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some information located under other tabs. -- .. - .. -. - -- -. - -- - - 

CHEM NAME: Nilric Acid 
CAS: 7697-37-2 

[ ] ldentlcal to previous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
[ ] Pure [x] Mix [ 1 Solid 1x1 Llquld [ ] Gas [XI EHS 

CHEMICAL COMPONENTS: 
[x] EHS, CAS: 7697-37-2, Component: Nilrlc acid, 56.5% W1 

PHYSICAL 8 HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ ] Fire [ ] Sudden Release of Pressure [ ] Readivlty [XI Immediate (acute) [ ] Delayed (chronic) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Aml: 75200 pounds Max Daib Am1 code: 04 (10,000 - 99,999 pounds) 
Avg Amt: 51500 pounds Avg Daily Am1 code: 04 (10,000 - 99.999 pounds) 
Max quantlty in largest container: 75200 pounds 
No. of days on-sile: 365 

STORAGE CODES 8 STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Conlainer Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST6035 - NE slde of plant Amount: 110000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some lnformation located under other tabs. 

CHEM NAME: Phosphoric Acld 
CAS: 7664-382 

[ ]Identical to previous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
[ ] Pure [x] M i  [ ] Solid [x] Llquid [ J Gas [ J EHS 

CHEMICAL COMPONENTS: 
[ ] EHS. CAS: 7664-38-2, Component: Phosphoric acid, 75% WI 

PHYSICAL 8 HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ ] Flre [ ] Sudden Release of Pressure 1 I Readivlty [x] Immediate (acute) [ ] Delayed (chronic) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 72200 pounds Max Daily Aml code: 04 (10.000- 99,99Q pounds) 
Avg Amt: 48100 pounds Avg Daily Amt code: 04 (10,000 - 99,999 pounds) 
Max quantity In largest container: 72200 pounds 
No. of days on-site: 365 

STORAGE CODES 8 STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Locetion: ST-6208 -FCC Tank Farm Amount: 78900 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some Information located under other tabs. 

. - --. .- .- - -. 
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Printed: Febluary 23,2007 

Faclllty Name: BASF Catalysts LLC 

CHEM NAME: Propane 
CAS: 74-986 

[ ] Identical lo previous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
1x1 Pure [ ] Mix [ 1 Sdid [XI Llquld ( 1 Gas ( 1 EHS 

PHYSICAL & HEALTH HAZARDS: 
1x1 Fire [x] Sudden Release of Pressure ] Reactivity 1x1 Immediate (acute) [ ] Delayed (chronlc) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Aml: 664000 pounds Max Daily Amt wde: 05 (100,000 - 999,999 pounds) 
Avg Aml: 534000 pounds Avg Daily Amt code: 05 (100.000 - 999,999 pounds) 
Max quantity in largest contalner: 130000 pounds 
NO. of days o*site: 365 

STORAGE CODES & STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Container Type: A Pressure: 2 Temp: 4 Location: Pro-A - NW slde of RR tracks Amount: 30000 gallons 
Contalner Type A Pressure: 2 Temp: 4 Location: Pro-8 - NW slde of RR tracks Amounl: 30000 gallons 
Conlalner Type: A Pressure: 2 Temp: 4 Location: Pro-C - NW side of RR tracks Amount; 30000 gallons 
Container Type: A Pressure: 2 Temp: 4 Location: Pro-D - NW side of RR tracks Amounl: 3 0 0  gallons 
ContalnerType: A Pressure: 2 Temp: 4 Localion: Pro-E - NW side of RR tracks Amount: 30000 gallons 
Container Type: A Pressure: 2 Temp: 4 Localion: Pro-F - NW slde of RR tracks Amount: 30000 gallons 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some information located under other tabs. 

CHEM NAME: Rare Earlh Nitrate 
CAS: M 2 - 1 7 - 9  

[ ] Identical to previous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
[ ]Pure 1x1 M i  ( ] Solid [XI Liquld [ 1 Gas W EHS 

CHEMICAL COMPONENTS: 
[ ] EHS, CAS: 68412-17-9. Component: Rare Earlh Nitrates, 35% Wt 
[x] EHS. CAS: 7697-37-2. Component: Nitric add. 3% WI 

PHYSICAL & HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ ] Fire [ 1 Sudden Release of Pressure I 1 Reaclivity [XI lrnrnediate (acute) [ ] Delayed (chronic) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 163000 pounds Max Dally Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 999,999 pounds) 
Avg Amt: 115000 pounds Avg Daily Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 999,999 pounds) 
Max quantity in largest contalner: 163000 pounds 
No. of days on-slte: 365 

STORAGE CODES & STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST-5 - FCC Tank Farm Amount: 234000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some Information localed under other tabs. 

- - - -- - 

CHEM NAME: Sodium Aluminate Solutlon 
CAS: 11138-49-1 

[ j Identical to previous year 
[ J TRADE SECRET 
[XI Pure [ ] Mix [ 1 Solid [XI Liquid [ 1 Gas [ 1 EHS 

PHYSICAL & HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ 1 Fire [ ] Sudden Release of Pressure [ ] Reactivity 1x1 Immediate (acute) [ ] Delayed (chronlc) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 376000 pounds Max Daily Amt mde: 05 (100,000 - 639,999 pounds) 
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Speclfic Infomation by Chernlcal Printed: February23,2007 

Facillty Name: BASF Catalysts LLC 

Avg Amt: 255000 pounds Avg Daily Aml code: 05 (100,000 - 9W.999 pounds) 
Max quantity In largest container: 280000 pounds 
No. of days on-site: 365 

STORAGE CODES & STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Contalner Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST-13 - FCC Tank Farm Amount: 112000 pounds 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST-5030 - Axens Tank Farm Amount: 286000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgla requires some information located under oUler tabs. 

CHEM NAME: Sodlum Hydroxide 
CAS: 7732-18-5 

[ ] Identical to prevlous year 
[ ] TRADE SECRET 
[ ] Pure [x] Mix [ ]Solid [XI Liquid [ 1 Gas [ 1 EHS 

CHEMICAL COMPONENTS: 
[ ] EHS, CAS: 7732-18-5, Component: Sodium hydroxide, 50% Wt 

PHYSICAL & HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ ] Flre [ ] Sudden Release of Pressure [ ] Reacllvlty 1x1 Immediate (acute) [ ] Delayed (chronic) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 548000 pounds Max Daily Amt code: 05 (100,000 - 909,699 pounds) 
Avg Amt: 34M)OO pounds Avg Daily Amf code: 05 (100,000 - 999,999 pounds) 
Max quantity in largest container: 328000 pounds 
No. of days on-slte: 365 

STORAGE CODES & STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Contalner Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST-31 15 -Axens Tank Farm Amount 381000 pounds 
Contalner Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST-4 - FCC Tank Farm Amount: 38.1000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some Inlormation bcated under other tabs. 

. . . -. . - 

CHEM NAME: Sodium Sillcate 
CAS: 1344-09-6 

[ ] Identical to previous year 
[ ] TRADE SECRET 
[ 1 Pure [x] Mix [ 1 Solid [x] Liquid [ 1 Gas [ ] EHS 

CHEMICAL COMPONENTS: 
[ ] EHS. CAS: 1344-048, Component: Sodium silicate, 35% Wt 

PHYSICAL 8 HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ ] Fire [ 1 Sudden Release of Pressure [ 1 Reactivity 1x1 Immediate (acute) [ ] Delayed (chronlc) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 1062000 pounds Max Daily Am1 code: 06 (1,000,000 - 0,999.999 pounds) 
Avg Aml: 701000 pounds Avg Daily Amt code: 05 (100.000 - 999,998 pounds) 
Max q u a n l i  in largest conlalner: 760000 pounds 
No. of days on-site: 365 

STORAGE CODES & STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Contaher Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Location: ST-10 - FCC Tank Farm Amount: 354000 pounds 
Container Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Locallon: ST-1B - FCC Tank Farm Amount: 935000 pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires s o m  informallon located under other tabs. 
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Printed: February 23, 2007 

Facillly Name: BASF Calalysts LLC 

CHEM NAME: SulfuuriC Acid 
CAS: 7664-93-9 

[ ]identical to previous year 
[ ]TRADE SECRET 
[ 1 Pure [x] Mix [ 1 Solid [x] Liquid [ 1 Gas [x] EHS 

CHEMICAL COMPONENTS: 
1x1 EHS, CAS: 7664-93-9, Component: Sulfuric add, 98% Wt 

PHYSICAL & HEALTH HAZARDS: 
[ 1 Flre [ 1 Sudden Release of Pressure [ 1 Reactivity 1x1 Immediate (acule) [q Delayed (chronic) 

INVENTORY: 
Max Amt: 407000 pounds Max Dally Amt mde: 05 (100,000 - 999.999 pounds) 
Avg Amt: 230000 pounds Avg Daily Amt code: 05 (100.000 - 999,999 pounds) 
Max quantity In largesl cantalner: 407000 pounds 
No. of days onsite: 365 

STORAGE CODES & STORAGE LOCATIONS: 
Conleiner Type: A Pressure: 1 Temp: 4 Localion: ST-3260 - Finlshing 1 Tank Ferm Amount: 49WW pounds 

CHEMICALS IN INVENTORY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requlres some Information located under othar tabs. 

FACILITY STATE FIELDS: 
Georgia requires some Informallon located under other tabs. 

STATE I LOCAL FEES: None. 

[ ] I have attached a site plan 
[ ] I haveattached a list of site coordinate abbreviations 
1 1 I have attached a descrlption of dikes and other safeguard measures 

' Cetiiflcetion (Read and slgn after completing ell sections) 
$'MIS undtr p ~ ~ t y r f h w t h ~ ~ I i h a V a  renonal1y.xrmln.d uldam lunlUu* ImL~ Inlorm~lon nubrnlhd In P~P.. on. throwh8, 
m d ~ h a t h e d o n  my~nqu~w of tho.. todl~dua. ,.spons~b~o I ~ ~ O ~ I ~ I ~ I ~ ~ Y I I S  ~ntormauon.~ bsu~ve ma1 ms r m m n t d  InrormaUon 1s h 4  acrunte, mnd camplata. 

Jimmy Christopher - Site Manager 
N- .ndaWslrl Uuaof amrrlwsnlar 
ORownedwanlo?a ~uhorlzed r.pr.s*nlaUn 
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RESPONDENT'S EXHIBIT 2 

US ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY - REGION 4 
Erergmeg Plsmh# aud C o e  Rl&-IOKnow A d  of 1986@F'CRA) a d  the 

C o m e  E m l r o n m c n t n l ~ o 5  C o ~ t k u  aud L W J W  A d  (CERCLA) 

,am, ,-La A, DOC-NTS 
EPA 

and mforcemr of ibe ~&grncy P I w g  and Crmmurvry Fdghl-mKmw Au of 1986 and ibs Coapmhcnv~ l?nm-PI R- 
Canpsaradon d LiabiEy M as -dsd by ibr Supafund Aracadmmc~ md -on Au of 1986 (SARA) 

3. ufSPBCFOR ADDRES: 

US EPA Region 4 Phone: (404)562-9195 
EPCRA Enforcement Section Fax: (404)562-9 163 
61 ~orsyth st, sw 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

I RECEIPT OF THE DOCUMENT(S) AND/OR SAMPLESiS) DESCRIBED I HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED. I 

I .  FIRM ADD- 
.Pres I c(ed5. SF 

Skvannak,lj~ 3@vo4 

I?E doc-rs and mls dchemiul mbrtmcn ~dlormirtwu dnsribcd bcbw rn m ( l 4  in coondon with the .dminimstim 



RESPONDENT'S EXHIBIT 3 

Title V Permit 
BASF Catalysts, LLC - Savannah Permit No.: 3295-051-0023-V-02-0 

PART 1.0 FACILITY DESCRIPTION 

1.1 Site Determination 

This is the only facility at this Part 70 site; there are no known site determination issues. 

1.2 Previous andlor Other Names 

Katalistics 

1.3 Overall Facility Process Description 

The operations at this facility can be broken down into 3 product Lines: Microspheres, Fluid Cracking 
Catalyst (FCC), and Alumina. 

"Microspheres" 
Ground/processed kaolin and other proprietary raw materials (mostly inorganic chemicals) are 
brought in by truck and mil. Raw materials are stored in silos H7&H8, which are controlled by 
individual baghouses. Materials are slurried, mixed (TS), spray dried into small particles @lB), and 
calcined (D6). Material may be remixed (T7) and dried (D2) prior to calcination. Finished product is 
pneumatically conveyed to storage silos (HI0 through H13), then shipped out via railcars, trucks or 
supersacks for delivery to downstream catalyst manufacturing facilities. DlB is controlled by a 
baghouse and D6 is controlled by a venturi scrubber. In the "heat recovery mode"(scenario #2), 
exhaust from D6 bypasses the scrubber and flows through DIB and out the DIB baghouse. D2 is 
controlled by a baghouse. Silos are controlled by individual baghoflses. 

"Fluid Cracking Catalyst" (FCC) 
Slurried raw materials and proprietary chemicals are delivered by trucklrail. The materials are mixed 
in mix tanks and then crystallized in reactors. Then the catalyst goes through a base exchange 
process on belt filters, rotary dryers and calciners. Material is then spray dried (D8) and calcined 
@7), product from D7 goes into a product collector while D7 exhaust runs back through D8 to aid in 
heating. D7 and D8 share a baghouse. That exhaust gas is routed into a venturi scrubber, then 
through an ammonia absorber. Product, now known as "Zeolite" is reslurried and mixed with kaolin, 
and other chemicals (TI & T2), then spray dried @lA). DIA is controlled by a baghouse. More wet 
mixing occurs, then thc mix is dried @3) and calcined (D10). D3 and Dl0 share a baghouse. More 
wet mixing occurs, then the mix is dried in DS, which is controlled by a baghouse. Finished dry FCC 
is pneumatically conveyed to storage silos. It is then loaded onto trucks or railcars for delivery to oil 
refineries. Some bagging may occur. There are three - 20 MMBtu/hr natural gas boilers associated 
with this product line. 

"Alumina" 
Raw materials including sodium aluminate and aluminum sulfate are delivered by truck and rail. 
These materials are wet mixed and allowed to crystallize. The slurry is filtered to remove impurities. 
The alumina is next washed on belt filters. The processed alumina is then spray dried in D9 into 
small particles and pneumatically conveyed to storage silos. D9 is exhausted through baghouse 
CD09. Alumina is next loaded onto trucks or railcars 6 6 )  or supersacks (Dl) for delivery to 
downstream catalyst manufacturing facilities. There is one- 20 MMBtu/hr natural gas boiler 
associated with this product line. In Application No. 16101 the permittee has proposed replace nitric 
acid with acetic acid in the alumina process. 

Printed: October 3,2006 Page 1 of 42 
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~- --..- ~ ~~~ . . -~ - ~. . ...... RESPONDENT'S EXHIBIT 4 

The Chemical Company 

June 5,2007 

Ms. Caron Falconer 
Chiec EPCRA Faforcement Section 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
Sam Nunn AtlantaFederal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, SW 
Atlanta, GA 30303-3104 

RE: EPCRADisclosure Pursuant to EPA's Audit Policy 

Dear Ms. Falconer: 

BASF Catalysts LLC' is hereby disclosing an EPCRA 313 reporting oversight. On May 
16,2007, while preparing the 2006 report, it was discovered that nitric acid had not 
previously been&ortedfor this site under EPCRA 313 for reporting years 2003,2004 
and 2005. This discovery triggered a fill review of chemical usage by site personnel. 
Although nitric acid was not repoM there are no releases to the environment that will 
need to be reported since the site utilizes neutralization in the wastewater treatment 
process. 

. . 
. . 

. "I'he repoitingnhe a&.TN ID nhber'forthis facility for the period at is&e are is 
. . .  follows: ~ , & e ~ d ' : ~ o r p o & i o n  - savannah ~ ~ e m t i o n s  31404KTLST1800E. . . . . . . . . . . .  . .~ 

. . ywoi&g to 
BASF Catalysts has- cbpy of the 

: : :  . . .  complete . . . .  reqi&iredsub~ttals'$jthin.60 days of o~'discavery.of this.. oversight.: We will 
then sub& a'fdl diiclos'uri under the Audit Policydescribing how wesatisfy each of the 

. . . . . .  : . :nine policy wnditio'ns; . :  : . . . .  . . 
. . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  

, ............... . . .  . . . . .  

Please contact h i & h e h e ~ o o n e ~ , ~ ~ ~  Team ~ e m b e i ,  at (912) 651-1256 if you have any 
questions regarding this submittal. *. . . . . . 

Sincerely, 

a 
Jimmy Christophq 
Site Manager 

' Efictive June 9,2006, thc publicly held shares of Engelbard Corporation (EC) were squired by an 
afliliac of BASF Comoration. which &te rhen meed intn EC. with EC beinn thc amvivin~ entiw. On 
Angust 1,2006, ;as conv&.ia a W e d  ~iabilitykmpany &own as ~ ~ ~ f C a t a l y s t s  LL?. 

' 

Engelhard Carporation, now BASF Qtdysk Il13,was add is the and operator of thc Pasadena 
'hility. 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 4 

ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER 
61 FORSYTH STREET 

ATIANTA. GEORGIA 3030M960 

RESPONDENT'S EXHIBIT 5 

Mr. Jimmy Christopher 
Site Manager 
BASF Catalysts LLC 
1800 East Resident Street 
Savannah. Georgia 31404 

Dear Mr. Christopher. 

The United States Environmental Pmtection Agency @PA) has received your 
letter dated June 5,2007, in which you disclosed, on behalf of BASF Catalysts LLC, 
Engelhard Corporation, Savannah, Georgia, possible noncompliance with &porhng 
requirements under the Emergency Planrung and Community Right-to-Know Act 
(EPCRA), Section 313. 

Your disclosure has been assigned Docket Number. 04-2007-9144. Please refer to 
this nllmher in future correspondences and submrssions regarding this disclosure. fhe  
legal contact assigned to chis disclosure is Saundi Wilsc~: (40W562-9504 or - - 
wilsori.sai~ndiBepagov) and the progradtechnics! ccntact is. Erika Bolden (Wi'562. -. - - - -- - 
9195 cr kldcn.erika@e~a.nov). You may receive an information gathering letter fmrn 
either of them regarding your facility's self-disclosure subminal ir. !he next few vbreics. 

EF'A appreciates your willingness to timeiy self-police, disclose, and comect 
violations at your facility. If you have any questions concerning this matter, please 
contact Gloria Low of my staff at 4041562-9672 or love.:loria@e~a.nov. 

. . 

Sincerely, 

~ e l b  Sisario, Acting CXief 
Enforcement & Compliance Planning 
and Analysis Branch 

Internet A d d m  (URL) hnpJhmw.epa.gov 
RrydadlRa~ycllble. Pnnled wh V€qeUbk Oil Bared Inks on R- Paper (Minimum Xfh Pahmrumr) 



RESPONDENT'S EXHIBIT 6 

The Chemical Company 

July 13,2007 

Kelly Sisario 
Acting Chief, Enforcement & Compliance Planning 
And Analysis Branch 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
6 1 Forsyth Street 
Atlanta, GA 30303-8960 

RE: EPCRA Disclosure Pursuant to EPA's Audit Policy 
Engelhard Corporation - Savannah Operations 31404KTLST1800E 
Docket Number 04-2007-9144 

Dear Ms. Sisario: 

On June 5,2007, BASF Catalysts LIC' disclosed an EPCRA 313 reporting oversight. 
On May 16,2007, while preparing the 2006 report, it was discovered that nitric acid had 
not previously been reported for this site under EPCRA 313 for reporting years 2003, 
2004 and 2005. As required by EPA's Audit Policy, BASF has submitted the FORM A 
reports within 60 days of the discovery of this oversight. We are also submitting a full 
disclosure under the Audit Policy describing how we satisfy each of the nine Policy 
conditions. 

. . . . . - . . . 
1. Systematic  isc cover^ 

The matter was discovered while preparing the 2006 TRI report. Site personnel 
discovered that a check of the threshold for nitric acid had not been done for reporting 
years 2003-2005 as it had been in previous years. 

2. Voluntary Disclosure 
The oversight was not detected by any pre-existing legally mandated monitoring, 
s amp l i i  or auditing procedures. 

3. Prompt Disclosure 
The discovery was made on May 16,2007 and disclosed in writing to EPA on June 5, 
2007, which is within the 21-day disclosure period. 

' Effective June 9,2006, the publicly held shares of Engelhard Corporation (EC) were acquired by an 
a t e  of BASF Corporation, which a n t e  then merged his EC, with EC being the surviving entity. On 
August 1,2006, EC was convened to a limited liability company h o r n  as BASF Catalysts LU3. 
Engelhard Corporation, now BASF Catalysts LLC, was and is the owner and opwtor of the SaMnnah 
facility. 



4. Discovery and disclosure independent of Government or Third Party Plaintiff 
The oversight was discovered and disclosed independent of any government 
enforcement action, notification of inspection, inspection, or third party complaint. 

5. Cor~ection and Remediation 
BASF Catalysts LLC submitted Form A reports on July 13,2007 for reporting years 
2003,2004, and 2005. 

6. Prevent Recurrence 
The Savannah Operations has a well-documented procedure for preparing annual TRI 
reports. An initial step of checking thresholds of all TRI chemicals has been added to 
the procedure. 

7. No Repeat Violations 
The same or closely related violation has not occurred at this site within the past 3 
years. 

8. Other Violations Excluded 
The violation did not result in serious actual harm, and did not present an imminent 
and substantial endangerment to human health or the environment. In addition, the 
violation did not violate the specific terms of any judicial or administrative order, 
consent agreement, or plea bargain. 

9. Cooperation 
BASF Catalysts LLC has complied with the elements of EPA's Self-Policing Policy 
by identifying the violations and promptly disclosing them to the Agency. 

Pleasecontact Michelle Nooney, EHS Team Member, at (912) 651-1256 if you have any 
questions regarding this submittal. 

Sincerely, 

Jimmy Christopher 
Site Manager 

Cc: Saundi Wilson 
Erika Bolden 
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SECTION 1. TOXIC CHEMICAL IDENTITY Report 1 of I 
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1.1 
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1 SECTION 2. MIXTURE COMPONENT IDENTITY (Important: DO NOT complete this section if you completed Sectlon I above.) I 

! 
! 

I 

........ -- 
M c  Q z m d  Nama Om-? CompWe arty Pan 1 Sedon 2.9 b checked w'. G ~ e r  Name mlnt be andrralty d b p d v e )  

1.3 
NA 

OMdt Chemical Mlme Rodded by Supplier ( I m p m  Mmmvm of70 charadus, induairg nnumberp, spaces, and pundualon ) 1 2.1 J 
NA 

1.2 
I 
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Wad? n?t,l 

I 
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I . . 
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-~ 
............. ...... ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .......................... . - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ...... . - -  . 
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2.1 
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. . - -- 
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1.1 
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RESPONDENT'S EXHIBIT 8 

.3fl%. " E UNITED STATES ENVIRONMEECTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 4 

ATLANTA FEDERAL CENER 
61 FORSYTH STREET 

ATLANTA. GEORGIA 303058960 

CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETURN RECEET REOUESTED 

Mi. Jimmy Christopher 
Site Manager 
BASF catalysts LLC 
1800 East President Street 

Sfivm'ah, . . Getjrgia' 31.404 

Re: Self-Disclosure 04-2007-9144 

Dear Mr. Christopher. 

The ~ ~ t e d  States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has re$wed your 
letters dated June 5,2007, a d  July 13,2007, concerning the self-di&losur& a n d  its 
applicationunder EPA'sfolicy "Incentivesfor Self-Policing, Discovery,Disclosure, 
Corktion and Prevention of violations; (Audit Policy) 65 Fed, Reg. 1%18 (April 11, 
2000). Preliminary review of the self-disclos&e confirms that in the present 
ckumstances, *lief will . . .  not be availableunder . . . .  EPA's Audit.~oficy. 

. . .  

. BAS? C a t a l y s t s ~ f a i ~  !o.q@if)for re!iefundgrthe Audit Poticy because t h e  
cornoan;'&d not satisfy condition D(4) of the Policy. The disclosure was not made 
befok EPA conducteda inspection at i6.o;; ficiliti. EPA inspected the facility on 
April 10; , 2007. . ' The company's self-disclosurk &x&d after the inspection. . . ~  . 

If you have any iuestio&, pl- contact ~ r i k a  c olden at (404) 562-9195. 

p&g&Ae 
. . . . .  

~everl$ . . .  H. Banist& . . . . . . . . . .  
Director , , .  

. . , . 
~ i r ,  Peiticides, and ~ o x i &  Management DiviSioh .. ' 

Internet Address (URL) httpJhvww.epagov 
~ ~ ~ e l o d l ~ e c y s l a b l e . .  PrimdAtJ Vqstauc 011 Based Inks rn R W e d  Piper (Minimum 30% Postmnsum@ 



RESPONDENT'S EXHIBIT 9 

I3 BASF 
The Chemical Company 

December 4,2007 

Ms. Beverly H. Bannister 
Air, Pesticides, and Toxics Management Division 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
Sam NUM Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, SW 
Atlanta, GA 30303-8960 

RE: Self-Disclosure 062007-9144 

Dear Ms. Bannister: 

In response to your letter dated October 29,2007, BASF Catalysts LLC respectfully 
requests that the Agency reconsider its determination that the company does not qualify 
for relief under the Audit Policy. 

The Federal Register notice explaining the Audit Policy states, 'Wnder Section D(4), the 
entity must discover the violation independently. That is, the violation must be 
discovered and identified before EPA or another government agency likely would have 
ideniified the problem either through its own investigative work or fium information 
received through a third party." 

Although EPA conducted an audit on April 10,2007, the audit was limited in scope and 
would have not have resulted in discovery of the oversight that the company later 
reported. The April 10 audit, which lasted less than one hour, involved only a cursory 
review ofpast 3 12 and 313 reports. The objective of the audit was to confirm that the 
company had submitted reports for the past few years, and did not include a data quality 
review. No problems or concerns were noted by the inspector as a result of the audit. 
Importantly, it was not the audit that prompted BASF's discovery of the filing oversight. 
Rather, the oversight was discovered when site personnel were preparing the 2006 TRI 
Report. Independent efforts by site personnel led to the discovery that the threshold for 
nitric acid had not been reevaluated for years 2003-2005 as it had been done in previous 
years. 

I appreciate your consideration regarding this matter. Please contact Michelle Nooney, 
EHS Team Member, at (912) 651-1256 if you need additional information. 

Sincerelv. 

Site Manager - 



RESPONDENT'S EXHIBIT 10 

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 4 

ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER 
61 FORSYTH STREET 

ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30303-8960 

FEDERAI, EXPRESS f E B  0 D m 

Mr. Jimmy Christopher 
BASF Catalysts, LLC 
1800 East President Street 
Savannah, . . .  Georgia 34404 

SUBJ: Notice of Violation 
BASF Catalysts, LLC 

Dear Mr. Christopher: 

On April 10 2006, y o u  faclllty located at 1800 East President Street was 
inspected by United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) inspectors to 
determine compliance with the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act 
of 1986 (EPCRA). Based on information gathered, it has been determined that your 
company is in v~olation of Section 313 of EPCRA. 42 U.S.C. $11023, and the regulations 
promulgated at 40 CFR Part 372. This letter explains the nature of these violations as we 
understand them given the information currently available to us. 

Although sdtlement discussions m e  take place at subsequent stages of the .*$;<e&*i'I;~SSS;~\lie:a;e;. .this .lefter, nng,the omdrtunify to conduct : 
discussi6nS_Prioi tbthe fiiingpf a comglaint. If agement on a settlement can be --....A . .. ------ ?---i--*-i"-l -- .iLI" -_ _. _ ,, . -~ .. . . . 
re'achedthe , settlement would ,& implemented through a Consent Agreement and Fa 
Order. Outlined below is a summary of the violations and application of EPA's 
Enforcement Response Policy (ERP) for Section 3 13of EPCRA. A copy of this ERP is 
enclosed. 

I. Summary of the Violations 

E R A  Section 313 requires the oyner or operator of a facility to use readily 
available data or reasonable estimates of the amounts of toxic chemicals required 
to be reported under EPCRA Section 3 13 to complete a toxic chemical release 
inventory form (Form R or Form A) and submit it to the Administrator of EPA 
and to the officialdesignated by the governor of the state in which the facility is 
located by July 1 for the preceding calendar year for each toxic chemical 
manufactured, processed, or otherwise' used in quantities exceeding the 
established threshold during rhat preceding calendar year provided the following 
elements aie satisfied. (a) The facility has 10 or more full-time employees; (b) 
The facility is instandard Industrial Classification (SIC) major group codes 10 
(except 101 1,1081,1094), 12 (except 1241), or 20 through 39; industry codes 
4911,493 1, or 4939 (limited to facilities that combust coal andlor oil for the 
purpose of generating power for distribution in commerce); or 4953 (Iimited to 

Internet A d d m  (URL) MtpJhww.epa.gov 
R.sycledlRcc)rslabb Plinkd edm VVegarabb Oil B a M  Inkson Recycled Pam Widmum W PWanruner) 



facilities regulated under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, Subtitle 
C, 42 U.S.C. 5 6921 et seq.), or 5169, or 5171, or 7389 (limited to facilities 
primarily engaged in solvent recovery services on a contract or fee basis); and (c) 
The faciIity manufactured, processed, or otherwise used a toxic chemical listed 
under EPCRA Section 313(c) and in 40 CFR Section 372.65, in excess of an 
applicable threshold quantity established under EPCRA Section 313(f) and set 
forth in 40 CFR Sections 372.25.372.27. or 372.28, during the calendar year. 

EPA has determined that BASF Catalysts processed greater than 25,000 lbs of 
nitric acid during reporting years 2003,2004, and 2005. However, BASF 
Catalysts failed to report in a timely manner to either the EPA or to the State of 
Georgia for repotting years 2003 (repotts due July 1,2004), 2004 (reports due 
July 1,2005), and 2005 (reports due July 1,2006) for nitric acid. The Form A 
report was submitted on Julyl3,2007. 

Pursuant to Section 325(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 5 11045(c), and 40 CFR 
Pas 19. EPA may assess a penalty of not more than $32,500 for each violation of 
Section 304(a) that occurred on or after March 15,2004. Each day a violation of 
Section 313 continues constitutes a separate violation. 

:U. Application of the Penalty Policy for EPCRA Section 313 Violations 

TheERP is used by EPA to ensure that enforcement actions for violations of 

. . 
' ~ R A  section 313 aie arrived at in a "fair, uniform and cgnsistknt h e r . "  
:w-i;Fagezl-), ,ah ,&&m*Agerrcy matter, we follow the ERP when settling 
EPCRA enforcement actions. This is EPA's primary m& for e n ' s d g  that .~ . . : --,.--- -. .... . -.< .-.+- - .-.- - ....-*-v..-- .. 
s m l a i  v~olat~ons recelve slm11Af tre&ent. AIfibF@iWiiieTiBBbT a .. - 
circ.*S- tances.. from the ERP, we must be.able to explain 
and document any such deviations. 

For civil administrative actions. the ERP directs us to calculate a penalty. Thii is 
accomplished through a two-step process: (1) the determination of a "gravity- 
based penalty," which considers the "circlumstances" and "extent" of the 
violations, and (2) allowing for adjustments based upon the following factors: 
voluntary disclosure, history of prior violations, delisted chemicals. attitude, other 
factors as justice may require, and ability to pay. 

A. Base Penalty Calculation for EPCRA Section 313 Violations 

For EPCRA Section 313 violations occurring after March 15,2004, the base 
penalty is calculated according to the matrix found on Page 11-B of the ERP. AU 
the extent level calculations are based on the information that total corporate 
entity sales are $10 million or more and there are 50 or more employees. 
The Extent Level is B since the facility processed less than ten times the 25,000 
pound threshold and the total corporate entity sales are $10 million or more and 
there a% 50 or more employees (ERP, Page 9). The Circumstance Level is 1; 



failure to report in a timely manner, Category I (ERP, Page 12). According to the 
matrix, the appropriate penalty for Level 1B is $21,922. As explained in the ERP, 
EPA considers the failure to report to the EPA and to the state as two separate 
violations. 

This results in a maximum total base penalty of $131,532. ($21,922 x 2 (EPA and 
State) x 3 years) 

For purposes of settlement and since BASF Catalysts, LLC does not have 
any previous EPCRA violations, we are w i l k  to compress the two reporting 
location violations (i.e., EPA and state), into one violation. This would result in 
a proposed base penalty, for settlement purposes only, of $65,766. 

8. Adjustments to the Base Penalty for EPCRA Section 313 Violations 

Consistent with the factors set forth inEPCRA Section 325(b)(l)(C), the ERP 
dugts us to consider various factors relevant to.@e violator's' s,ituation, including 
any history of violations, the degree of culpability, other factors as justice may 
require, and the violator's ability to pay a penalty. The ERP addresses these 
factors through the series of "adjustment factor< described below. 

Information available to us regarding BASF Catalyst$, LLC suggests that 
payment of a penalty on the orde'r of that discussed in this letter would not 
threatenthe viability of the company.   ow ever, as withany enforc'enient case, 
'~~A~~~~@@.enttreg~d@g.abb~~tyb:pay~~s-subject:to . . . .. . . . . change . . . . . . . . . based . . . . . . . on new 
information. The ERP, on Pages 19-20,describes the typesof information that 

We are unaware of any prior instances where BASF Catalysts, LLC has been 
cited for violation of EPCRA. Therefore, there would be no adjustment to the 
base penalty based upon this consideration. 

The remaining factors in the ERP address the opportunity to reduce a penalty f o ~  
various reasons. The ERP allows for reductions of the base penalty based upon 
the company's "attitude." This adjustment has two components: (1) cooperation 
and (2) compliance. The penalty may be reduced by up to 15% based upon the 
cooperation shown throughout the compliance evaluationlenforcement process. 
Factors include a company's degree of cooperation during the inspection, 
allowing access to records, responsiveness and exped'~tious provision of 
supporting documentation requested by EPA during or after the inspection, and 
cooperation and preparedness during the settlement process. One of the reasons 
for our decision to send this letter prior to filing a complaint is to provide BASF 
Catalysts, LLC with an opportunity to maximize this particular avenue for 
flexibility in the ERP. 



Additionally, the penalty may be reduced by up to 15% based on the facility's 
good faith efforts to comply with EPCRA, and the speed and compl&eness with 
which it comes into compliance. 

Finallv. the ERP allows for an a d d i t i o ~ l  reduction o f  uu to 25% for "other 
mntters as iustice mav reauire." We re~ard  this as nrovidinp an ouuoltunitv to 
take into account cornvellin~ and uniaue circumstances that mav not otherwise be 
accounted for in the EM where such circumstances can be documented and the 
reduction iustified. 

111. 
In presenting this analysis of the ERP, we hope to provide a foundation for 

settlement discussions should BASF Catalysts, LLC accept the invitation to enter into 
such a dialogue. Additionally, for settlement purposes only, we would consider reducing 
the proposed penalty of $65,766 using any of the applicable adjustment factors 
previously stated (ERP, Pages 18-20). 

If BASF Catalysts wishes to engage in settlement dialogue, we request that you 
contact either Ms. Erika Bolden at (404) 562-9195 or Mr. Robert Bookman at (404) 562- 
9169 by February 20,2008. You may also respond in writing with a specific settlement 
offer that is responsive to the ERP and to EPA's settlement requirements as outlined in 
this letter. Failure to respond by February 20,2008, will be taken as an indication that 
settlement negotiationk . . should not be expected .. at . . .  this time, . . 

. . 
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RESPONDENT'S EXHIBIT 11 

0.  BASF 
The Chemical Company 

Via Electronic Mail 

May 8,2008 

Mr. Adam Dilts 
Assistant Regional Counsel 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Sam Nunn Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Eorsyth Skeet, SW 
Atlanta, GA 30303-8960 

RE: BASF Catalysts LLC, Savannah, GA 
Notice of Violation 

Dear Mr. Dilts: 

BASF remains committed to its position that the occurrence of the EPA inspection on April 10,2007 
should not preclude the application of EPA's Policy on Incentives for Self-Policing (Audit Policy) to 
BASF's self-disclosure dated June 5,2007 and July 13,2007. BASF understands that the basis for 
EPA's conclusion that we do not qualify for relief under the Audit Policy is that Ms. White "would 
have" eventually come to the same conclusion had BASF not self-disclosed, although admittedly 
EPA did not have any informationprior to our self-disclosure to indicate that there was a violation.' 
Based on Ms. White's claim dwing ow call on February 19 that BASF's act of self-disclosure meant 
that EPA had to suspend its alleged ongoing post inspection activities, it seems obvious that EPA 
still did not have any information that was indicative of a violation. For the record, Ms. White said 
nothing at the time of her brief (less than an hour) inspection to suggest that she had any concerns or 
that BASF should expect further contact from EPA in this regard. She took a single document with 
her at the conclusion of the inspection. Moreover, BASF heard nothing further from EPA in the 
intervening two month period between the April 10 inspection and ow June 5 self-disclosure. 

BASF believes that EPA's position is completely con- to the Audit Policy's stated intent of 
encouraging regulated entities to voluntarily discover, promptly disclose and expeditiously correct 
violations of Federal environmental requirements. BASF did all three of these things in this case. 
As we have explained on more than one occasion, the reporting error was discovered during the 
normal courseof preparing the 2006 TRI report. This was the fust TRI report to be prepared by the 
Savannah plant since its acquisition by BASF Corporation in June 2006. The Savannah site is 
supported at the site and corporate levels by BASF Corporation Environmental, Health & Safety 
professionals. The BASF intemal deadline for preparing the TRI report was June 1. Thus, the EHS 
Team Member at the Savannah site who was responsible for preparing the report commenced her 

' The information conveyed during the discussions on Febmary 19 with Robert Bookman and Erika White and on April 
29 with Ms. White and yourself, serves as the basis of our understanding. 

BASF Corporation 
100 Campus Dave 
Flatgm Pqk N.J. 07832 
Tel: (873) 2456055 
Fax: (973) 2458712 
nw.martin@2b?stmm 

Helping Make Products Better 



Mr. Adam Dilts May 8,2008 

preparations in mid-May (more than a month after the inspection), at which time the error was 
discovered. Significantly, this individual had not prepared the report for the prior three years. 

BASF can't help but feel that it is the victim of the coincidental proximity in time between the 
inspection and the regulatory deadline for filing the TRI report. EPA incorrectly claims in its Notice 
of Violation dated February 1,2008 that "[blased on information gathered . . . EPA has 
determined" that BASF is in violation of EPCRA (emphasis added). Clearly the only information 
that EPA has is what was contained in BASF's self-disclosure. If EPA's burden of proof is simply 
to claim that it wozlld have discovered a violation, and not that it actually did discover it, then it 
seems there is virtually no circumstance under which a regulated entity subject to periodic 
inspections can successfully invoke the incentives for self-policing. EPA's position in thii case, if 
maintained, will certainly make BASF think twice before "doing the right thing" in the future, a 
result which we are certain is not EPA's objective. 

Sincerely, 

Nancy Lake Martin 
Senior Environmental & Safety Counsel 

Cc: Beverly H. Banister, USEPA (via electronic mail) 
Caron B. Falconer, USEPA (via electronic mail) 
Kelly Sisario, USEPA (via electronic mail) 
Steve Herman, Beveridge & Diamond (via electronic mail) 


